STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

KIRR, MARBACH PARTNERS FUNDS, INC.

KIRR, MARBACH PARTNERS VALUE FUND (KMVAX)

P.O. BOX 701

MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN 53201-0701

1-800-870-8039

This Statement of Additional Information is not a prospectus and should be read in conjunction with the Prospectus of the KIRR, MARBACH PARTNERS VALUE FUND (the "Fund"), dated January 24, 2020. The Fund is a series of Kirr, Marbach Partners Funds, Inc. (the "Corporation").

A copy of the Prospectus is available without charge upon request to the above-noted address or toll-free telephone number.

The Fund's audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, are incorporated herein by reference to the Fund's Annual Report, which is available without charge upon request to the above-noted address or toll-free telephone number.

This Statement of Additional Information is dated January 24, 2020.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS	2
FUND ORGANIZATION	3
INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	3
IMPLEMENTATION OF INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES	4
CODE OF ETHICS	15
ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING PROGRAM	15
PROXY VOTING	16
DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS	16
PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS	17
INVESTMENT ADVISER	17
PORTFOLIO MANAGER	19
FUND TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE	20
CUSTODIAN	21
TRANSFER AGENT AND DIVIDEND-DISBURSING AGENT	22
ADMINISTRATOR	22
DISTRIBUTOR AND PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	23
PURCHASE, EXCHANGE AND PRICING OF SHARES	25
REDEMPTIONS IN KIND	28
TAXATION OF THE FUND	28
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	28
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	29
APPENDIX	A-1
	A-1

In deciding whether to invest in the Fund, you should rely on information in this Statement of Additional Information and related Prospectus. The Fund has not authorized others to provide additional information. The Fund has not authorized the use of this Statement of Additional Information in any state or jurisdiction in which such offering may not legally be made.

FUND ORGANIZATION

The Corporation is an open-end, diversified, management investment company, commonly referred to as a mutual fund. The Fund is a series of common stock of the Corporation, a Maryland company incorporated on September 23, 1998. The Corporation is authorized to issue shares of common stock in series and classes. Each share of common stock of the Fund is entitled to one vote, and each share is entitled to participate equally in dividends and capital gain distributions and in the assets of the Fund in the event of liquidation. No certificates will be issued for shares held in your account. You will, however, have full shareholder rights. Generally, the Corporation will not hold annual shareholders' meetings unless required by the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act") or Maryland law. Shareholders have certain rights, including the right to call an annual meeting upon a vote of 10% of the Corporation's outstanding shares for the purpose of voting to remove one or more directors or to transact any other business. The 1940 Act requires the Corporation to assist the shareholders in calling such a meeting.

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek long-term capital growth. The following are the Fund's fundamental investment restrictions which cannot be changed without the approval of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities. As used herein, a "majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities" means the lesser of (i) 67% of the shares of common stock of the Fund represented at a meeting at which more than 50% of the outstanding shares are present, or (ii) more than 50% of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Fund.

The Fund:

- 1. May not with respect to 75% of its total assets, purchase the securities of any issuer (except securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its agencies or instrumentalities) if, as a result, (i) more than 5% of the Fund's total assets would be invested in the securities of that issuer, or (ii) the Fund would hold more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of that issuer.
- 2. May (i) borrow money from banks for temporary or emergency purposes (but not for leveraging or the purchase of investments) and (ii) make other investments or engage in other transactions permissible under the 1940 Act, which may involve a borrowing, including borrowing through reverse repurchase agreements, provided that the combination of (i) and (ii) shall not exceed 33 1/3% of the value of the Fund's total assets (including the amount borrowed), less the Fund's liabilities (other than borrowings). If the amount borrowed at any time exceeds 33 1/3% of the Fund's total assets, the Fund will, within three days thereafter (not including Sundays, holidays and any longer permissible period), reduce the amount of the borrowings such that the borrowings do not exceed 33 1/3% of the Fund's total assets. The Fund may also borrow money from other persons to the extent permitted by applicable law.
- 3. May not issue senior securities, except as permitted under the 1940 Act.
- 4. May not act as an underwriter of another issuer's securities, except to the extent that the Fund may be deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), in connection with the purchase and sale of portfolio securities.
- 5. May not purchase or sell physical commodities unless acquired as a result of ownership of securities or other instruments (but this shall not prevent the Fund from purchasing or selling options, futures contracts or other derivative instruments, or from investing in securities or other instruments backed by physical commodities).
- 6. May not make loans if, as a result, more than 33 1/3% of the Fund's total assets would be lent to other persons, except through (i) purchases of debt securities or other debt instruments, or (ii) engaging in repurchase agreements.
- 7. May not purchase the securities of any issuer if, as a result, more than 25% of the Fund's total assets would be invested in the securities of issuers, the principal business activities of which are in the same industry.

8. May not purchase or sell real estate unless acquired as a result of ownership of securities or other instruments (but this shall not prohibit the Fund from purchasing or selling securities or other instruments backed by real estate or of issuers engaged in real estate activities).

The following are the Fund's non-fundamental investment policies which may be changed by the Board of Directors without shareholder approval.

The Fund may not:

- 1. Sell securities short, unless the Fund owns or has the right to obtain securities equivalent in kind and amount to the securities sold short, or unless it covers such short sale as required by the current rules and positions of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") or its staff.
- 2. Purchase securities on margin, except that the Fund may obtain such short-term credits as are necessary for the clearance of transactions.
- 3. Invest in illiquid securities if, as a result of such investment, more than 10% of its net assets would be invested in illiquid securities.
- 4. Purchase securities of other investment companies except in compliance with the 1940 Act.
- 5. Engage in futures or options on futures transactions.
- 6. Make any loans, except through (i) purchases of debt securities or other debt instruments, or (ii) engaging in repurchase agreements.
- 7. Borrow money except from banks or through reverse repurchase agreements, and will not purchase securities when bank borrowings exceed 5% of its total assets.

Except for the fundamental investment limitations listed above and the Fund's investment objective, the Fund's other investment policies are not fundamental and may be changed with approval of the Corporation's Board of Directors. Unless noted otherwise, if a percentage restriction is adhered to at the time of investment, a later increase or decrease in percentage resulting from a change in the Fund's assets (i.e., due to cash inflows or redemptions) or in market value of the investment or the Fund's assets will not constitute a violation of that restriction.

IMPLEMENTATION OF INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

The following information supplements the discussion of the Fund's investment objectives and strategy described in the Prospectus under the captions "Investment Objective" and "How the Fund Invests."

ILLIQUID SECURITIES

The Fund is permitted to invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid securities (i.e., securities that are not readily marketable) although it does not intend to invest more than 10% of its net assets in such illiquid securities. For purposes of this restriction, illiquid securities include, but are not limited to, restricted securities (securities the disposition of which is restricted under the federal securities laws), repurchase agreements with maturities in excess of seven days and other securities that are not readily marketable. The Board of Directors of the Corporation, or its delegate, has the ultimate authority to determine, to the extent permissible under the federal securities laws, which securities are liquid or illiquid for purposes of this limitation. Certain securities exempt from registration or issued in transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Act, such as securities that may be resold to institutional investors under Rule 144A under the Securities Act, may be considered liquid under guidelines adopted by the Board of Directors. However, investing in securities which may be resold pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act could have the effect of increasing the level of the Fund's illiquidity to the extent that institutional investors become, for a time, uninterested in purchasing such securities.

The Board of Directors has delegated to Kirr, Marbach & Company, LLC (the "Adviser") the day-to-day determination of the liquidity of any security, although it has retained oversight and ultimate responsibility for such



determinations. Although no definitive liquidity criteria are used, the Board of Directors has directed the Adviser to look to such factors as (i) the nature of the market for a security (including the institutional private resale market), (ii) the terms of certain securities or other instruments allowing for the disposition to a third party or the issuer thereof (e.g., certain repurchase obligations and demand instruments), (iii) the availability of market quotations (e.g., for securities quoted in the PORTAL system), and (iv) other permissible relevant factors.

Restricted securities may be sold only in privately negotiated transactions or in a public offering with respect to which a registration statement is in effect under the Securities Act. Where registration is required, the Fund may be obligated to pay all or part of the registration expenses and a considerable period may elapse between the time of the decision to sell and the time the Fund may be permitted to sell a security under an effective registration statement. If, during such a period, adverse market conditions were to develop, the Fund might obtain a less favorable price than that which prevailed when it decided to sell. Restricted securities will be priced at fair value as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors. If, through the appreciation of restricted securities or the depreciation of unrestricted securities, the Fund should be in a position where more than the permitted threshold (i.e., 15%, although the Fund does not intend to exceed 10%) of the value of its net assets are invested in illiquid securities, including restricted securities which are not readily marketable (except for Rule 144A securities deemed to be liquid by the Adviser), the Fund will take such steps as is deemed advisable, if any, to protect liquidity.

WARRANTS

The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in warrants. Warrants are options to purchase equity securities at a specific price for a specific period of time. They do not represent ownership of the securities but only the right to buy them. Investing in warrants is purely speculative in that they have no voting rights, pay no dividends and have no rights with respect to the assets of the issuer of the underlying securities. In addition, the value of a warrant does not necessarily change with the value of the underlying securities, and a warrant must be exercised prior to its expiration date or it ceases to have value.

FIXED INCOME SECURITIES

FIXED INCOME SECURITIES IN GENERAL. The Fund may invest up to 25% of its assets in a wide variety of fixed income securities, including bonds and other debt securities and non-convertible preferred stocks. Debt securities are obligations of the issuer to pay interest and repay principal. Preferred stocks have rights senior to a company's common stock, but junior to a company's creditors and, if held by the Fund as a fixed income security, will generally pay a dividend.

Changes in market interest rates affect the value of fixed income securities. If interest rates increase, the value of fixed income securities generally decrease. Similarly, if interest rates decrease, the value of fixed income securities generally increase. Shares in the Fund are likely to fluctuate in a similar manner. In general, the longer the remaining maturity of a fixed income security, the greater it will fluctuate in value based on interest rate changes. Longer-term fixed income securities generally pay a higher interest rate. The Fund invests in fixed income securities of varying maturities.

Changes in the credit quality of the issuer also affect the value of fixed income securities. Lower-rated fixed income securities generally pay a higher interest rate. Although the Fund only invests in investment grade debt securities, the value of these securities may decrease due to changes in ratings over time.

TYPES OF FIXED INCOME SECURITIES. The Fund may invest in the following types of fixed income securities:

- o Corporate debt securities, including bonds, debentures and notes;
- o U.S. government securities;
- o Preferred stocks;
- o Convertible securities;

- o Commercial paper (including variable amount master demand notes);
- Bank obligations, such as certificates of deposit, banker's acceptances and time deposits of domestic and foreign banks, domestic savings associations and their subsidiaries and branches (in amounts in excess of the current \$100,000 per account insurance coverage provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation); and
- o Repurchase agreements.

RATINGS. The Fund will limit investments in fixed income securities to those that are rated at the time of purchase as at least investment grade by at least one national rating organization, such as S&P or Moody's, or, if unrated, are determined to be of equivalent quality by the Adviser. Investment grade fixed income securities include:

- o U.S. government securities;
- o Bonds or bank obligations rated in one of the four highest categories (e.g., BBB- or higher by S&P);
- o Short-term notes rated in one of the two highest categories (e.g., SP-2 or higher by S&P);
- o Commercial paper or short-term bank obligations rated in one of the three highest categories (e.g., A-3 or higher by S&P); and
- o Repurchase agreements involving investment grade fixed income securities.

Investment grade fixed income securities are generally believed to have a lower degree of credit risk. If a security's rating falls below the above criteria, the Adviser will determine what action, if any, should be taken to ensure compliance with the Fund's investment objective and to ensure that the Fund will at no time have 5% or more of its net assets invested in non-investment grade debt securities. Additional information concerning securities ratings is contained in the Appendix.

GOVERNMENT SECURITIES. U.S. government securities are issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its agencies or instrumentalities. These securities may have different levels of government backing. U.S. Treasury obligations, such as Treasury bills, notes, and bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury. Some U.S. government agency securities are also backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury, some U.S. government National Mortgage Association (GNMA). Other U.S. government securities may be backed by the right of the agency to borrow from the U.S. Treasury, such as securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank, or may be backed only by the credit of the agency. The U.S. government and its agencies and instrumentalities only guarantee the payment of principal and interest and not the market value of the securities. The market value of U.S. government securities will fluctuate based on interest rate changes and other market factors.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES. Convertible securities are bonds, debentures, notes, preferred stocks or other securities that may be converted into or exchanged for a specified amount of common stock of the same or a different issuer within a particular period of time at a specified price or formula. A convertible security entitles the holder to receive interest normally paid or accrued on debt or the dividend paid on preferred stock until the convertible security matures or is redeemed, converted or exchanged. Convertible securities have unique investment characteristics in that they generally (i) have higher yields than common stocks, but lower yields than comparable non-convertible securities, (ii) are less subject to fluctuation in value than the underlying stock since they have fixed income characteristics, and (iii) provide the potential for capital appreciation if the market price of the underlying common stock increases. A convertible security may be subject to redemption at the option of the issuer at a price established in the convertible security's governing instrument. If a convertible security held by the Fund is called for redemption, the Fund will be required to permit the issuer to redeem the security, convert it into the underlying common stock, or sell it to a third party. The Adviser will limit investments in convertible debt securities to those that are rated at the time of purchase as investment grade by at least one national rating organization, such as S&P or Moody's, or, if unrated, are determined to be of equivalent quality by the Adviser.



VARIABLE- OR FLOATING-RATE SECURITIES. Variable-rate securities provide for automatic establishment of a new interest rate at fixed intervals (e.g., daily, monthly, semi-annually, etc.). Floating-rate securities generally provide for automatic adjustment of the interest rate whenever some specified interest rate index changes. The interest rate on variable- or floating-rate securities is ordinarily determined by reference to or is a percentage of a bank's prime rate, the 90-day U.S. Treasury bill rate, the rate of return on commercial paper or bank certificates of deposit, an index of short-term interest rates or some other objective measure.

Variable- or floating-rate securities frequently include a demand feature entitling the holder to sell the securities to the issuer at par. In many cases, the demand feature can be exercised at any time on seven days notice. In other cases, the demand feature is exercisable at any time on 30 days notice or on similar notice at intervals of not more than one year. Some securities which do not have variable or floating interest rates may be accompanied by puts producing similar results and price characteristics.

Variable-rate demand notes include master demand notes which are obligations that permit the Fund to invest fluctuating amounts that may change daily without penalty, pursuant to direct arrangements between the Fund, as lender, and the borrower. The interest rates on these notes fluctuate from time to time. The issuer of such obligations normally has a corresponding right, after a given period, to prepay in its discretion the outstanding principal amount of the obligations plus accrued interest upon a specified number of days' notice to the holders of such obligations. The interest rate on a floating-rate demand obligation is based on a known lending rate, such as a bank's prime rate, and is adjusted automatically each time such rate is adjusted. The interest rate on a variable-rate demand obligation is adjusted automatically at specified intervals. Frequently, such obligations are secured by letters of credit or other credit support arrangements provided by banks. Because these obligations are direct lending arrangements between the lender and borrower, it is not contemplated that such instruments will generally be traded. There generally is not an established secondary market for these obligations, although they are redeemable at face value. Accordingly, where the obligations are not secured by letters of credit or other credit support arrangements, the Fund's right to redeem is dependent on the ability of the borrower to pay principal and interest on demand. Such obligations frequently are not rated by credit rating agencies and, if not so rated, the Fund may invest in them only if the Adviser determines that at the time of investment such obligations are of comparable quality to the other obligations in which the Fund may invest.

The Fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in variable- and floating-rate demand obligations that are not readily marketable (a variable- or floating-rate demand obligation that may be disposed of on not more than seven days notice will be deemed readily marketable and will not be subject to this limitation). See "Implementation of Investment Objectives — Illiquid Securities." In addition, each variable- and floating-rate obligation must meet the credit quality requirements applicable to all the Fund's investments at the time of purchase. When determining whether such an obligation meets the Fund's credit quality requirements, the Fund may look to the credit quality of the financial guarantor providing a letter of credit or other credit support arrangement.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS. The Fund may enter into repurchase agreements with certain banks or non-bank dealers. In a repurchase agreement, the Fund buys a security at one price, and at the time of sale, the seller agrees to repurchase the obligation at a mutually agreed upon time and price (usually within seven days). The repurchase agreement, thereby, determines the yield during the purchaser's holding period, while the seller's obligation to repurchase is secured by the value of the underlying security. The Adviser will monitor, on an ongoing basis, the value of the underlying securities to ensure that the value always equals or exceeds the repurchase price plus accrued interest. Repurchase agreements could involve certain risks in the event of a default or insolvency of the other party to the agreement, including possible delays or restrictions upon the Fund's ability to dispose of the underlying securities. Although no definitive creditworthiness criteria are used, the Adviser reviews the creditworthiness of the banks and non-bank dealers with which the Fund enters into repurchase agreements to evaluate those risks.

REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Fund may, with respect to up to 5% of its net assets, engage in reverse repurchase agreements. In a reverse repurchase agreement, the Fund would sell a security and enter into an agreement to repurchase the security at a specified future date and price. The Fund generally retains the right to interest and principal payments on the security. Since the Fund receives cash upon entering into a reverse repurchase agreement, it may be considered a

borrowing. When required by guidelines of the SEC, the Fund will set aside permissible liquid assets in a segregated account to secure its obligations to repurchase the security.

TEMPORARY STRATEGIES

Prior to investing the proceeds from sales of Fund shares, to meet ordinary daily cash needs or to respond to adverse market, economic, political or other conditions, the Adviser may hold cash and/or invest all or a portion of the Fund's assets in money market instruments, which are short-term fixed income securities issued by private and governmental institutions. Money market instruments include:

- o Commercial paper;
- o Short-term U.S. government securities;
- o Repurchase agreements;
- o Banker's acceptances;
- o Certificates of deposit;
- o Time deposits; and
- o Other short-term fixed income securities.

If these temporary strategies are used for adverse market, economic or political conditions, it is impossible to predict when or for how long the Adviser may employ these strategies for the Fund. To the extent the Fund engages in these temporary strategies, the Fund may not achieve its investment objective.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Fund may purchase and sell foreign currency on a spot or forward basis to facilitate the purchase of foreign securities. Because most foreign securities are denominated in non-U.S. currencies, the Fund may be required to purchase and sell foreign currencies to engage in transactions in a foreign security. Purchasing and selling foreign currency on a spot (cash) basis involves converting U.S. dollars into the applicable foreign currency or converting the foreign currency on a forward basis involves converting U.S. dollars into the foreign currency or converting the foreign currency on a forward basis involves converting U.S. dollars into the applicable foreign currency or converting the foreign currency on a forward basis involves converting U.S. dollars into the applicable foreign currency or converting the foreign currency on a forward basis involves converting U.S. dollars into the applicable foreign currency or converting the foreign currency into U.S. dollars for purposes of settling a foreign security transaction at some date in the future (i.e., when the Fund is obligated to purchase or sell a foreign security at a specified future date at a specified price). In general, if the currency in which a Fund investment is denominated appreciates against the U.S. dollar, the dollar value of the security will increase. Conversely, a decline in the exchange rate of the currency would adversely affect the value of the Fund investment expressed in U.S. dollars.

DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS AND FOREIGN SECURITIES

The Fund may invest up to 20% of its net assets in foreign securities directly or by purchasing depositary receipts, including American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs") and European Depositary Receipts ("EDRs") or other securities convertible into securities of issuers based in foreign countries. These securities may not necessarily be denominated in the same currency as the securities into which they may be converted. Generally, ADRs, in registered form, are denominated in U.S. dollars and are designed for use in the U.S. securities markets, while EDRs, in bearer form, may be denominated in other currencies and are designed for use in European securities markets. ADRs are receipts typically issued by a U.S. Bank or trust company evidencing ownership of the underlying securities. EDRs are European receipts evidencing a similar arrangement. For purposes of the Fund's investment objectives, ADRs and EDRs are deemed to have the same classification as the underlying securities they represent. Thus, an ADR or EDR representing ownership of common stock will be treated as common stock.

ADR facilities may be established as either "unsponsored" or "sponsored." While ADRs issued under these two types of facilities are in some respects similar, there are distinctions between them relating to the rights and obligations of ADR holders and the practices of market participants. For example, a non-sponsored depositary may not provide the same shareholder information that a sponsored depositary is required to provide under its contractual arrangements with the issuer, including reliable financial statements. Under the terms of most sponsored arrangements, depositories agree to distribute notices of shareholder meetings and voting instructions, and to provide shareholder communications and other information to the ADR holders at the request of the issuer of the deposited securities.

Investments in securities of foreign issuers involve risks which are in addition to the usual risks inherent in domestic investments. In many countries there is less publicly available information about issuers than is available in the reports and ratings published about companies in the United States. Additionally, foreign countries are not subject to uniform accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards. Other risks inherent in foreign investments include expropriation; confiscatory taxation; withholding taxes on dividends or interest; less extensive regulation of foreign brokers, securities markets and issuers; costs incurred in conversions between currencies; possible delays in settlement in foreign securities markets; limitations on the use or transfer of assets (including suspension of the ability to transfer currency from a given country); the difficulty of enforcing obligations in other countries; diplomatic developments; and political or social instability. Foreign economies may differ favorably or unfavorably from the U.S. economy in various respects and many foreign securities are less liquid and their prices are more volatile than comparable U.S. securities. From time to time foreign securities may be difficult to liquidate rapidly without adverse price effects. Certain costs attributable to foreign investing, such as custody charges and brokerage costs, may be higher than those attributable to domestic investment. The value of the Fund's assets denominated in foreign currencies will increase or decrease in response to supply and demand in the currency exchange rates can be volatile at times in response to supply and demand in the currency exchange markets, governmental intervention, speculation and other political and economic conditions.

INVESTMENT COMPANIES

The Fund may invest, to a limited extent, in investment companies, including open-end and closed-end mutual funds and money market funds. Under the 1940 Act, the Fund may invest up to 10% of its total assets in shares of other investment companies and up to 5% of its total assets in any one investment company as long as the investment does not represent more than 3% of the voting stock of the acquired investment company. The Fund does not intend to invest in such investment companies unless, in the judgment of the Adviser, the potential benefits of such investments justify the payment of any associated fees and expenses.

HIGH-YIELD (HIGH-RISK) SECURITIES

IN GENERAL. The Fund will invest in fixed income securities rated at the time of purchase as at least investment grade by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization ("NRSROs"), such as S&P or Moody's. If a security's rating falls below the ratings criteria set forth under "Implementation of Investment Objectives 3/4 Fixed Income Securities," the Adviser will determine what action, if any, should be taken to ensure compliance with the Fund's investment objective and to ensure that the Fund will at no time have 5% or more of its net assets invested in non-investment grade debt securities. Non-investment grade debt obligations ("lower-quality securities") include (1) bonds rated as low as C by S&P and Moody's and comparable ratings of other NRSROs; (2) commercial paper rated as low as C by S&P, Not Prime by Moody's and comparable ratings of other NRSROs; and (3) unrated debt obligations of comparable quality. Lower-quality securities, while generally offering higher yields than investment grade as predominantly speculative with respect to the issuer's capacity to pay interest and repay principal. The special risk considerations in connection with investments in these securities are discussed below. Refer to the Appendix for a description of the securities ratings.

EFFECT OF INTEREST RATES AND ECONOMIC CHANGES. The lower-quality and comparable unrated security market is relatively new and its growth has paralleled a long economic expansion. As a result, it is not clear how this market may withstand a prolonged recession or economic downturn. Such conditions could severely disrupt the market for and adversely affect the value of such securities.

All interest-bearing securities typically experience appreciation when interest rates decline and depreciation when interest rates rise. The market value of lower-quality and comparable unrated securities tends to reflect individual corporate developments to a greater extent than do higher rated securities. As a result, they generally involve more credit risks than securities in the higher-rated categories. During an economic downturn or a sustained period of rising interest rates, highly leveraged issuers of lower-quality and comparable unrated securities may experience financial stress and may not have sufficient revenues to meet their payment obligations. The issuer's ability to service its debt obligations may also be adversely affected by specific corporate developments, the issuer's inability to meet specific projected business forecasts or the unavailability of additional financing. The risk of loss due to default by an issuer of these securities is significantly greater than for issuers of higher-rated securities because such securities are generally unsecured and are often subordinated to other creditors. Further, if the issuer of a lower-quality or comparable unrated security defaulted, the Fund might incur additional expenses to seek recovery. Periods of economic uncertainty and changes would also generally result in increased volatility in the market prices of these securities and thus in the Fund's net asset value.

As previously stated, the value of a lower-quality or comparable unrated security will decrease in a rising interest rate market and accordingly, so will the Fund's net asset value. If the Fund experiences unexpected net redemptions in such a market, the Fund may be forced to liquidate a portion of its portfolio securities without regard to their investment merits. Due to the limited liquidity of lower-quality and comparable unrated securities (discussed below), the Fund may be forced to liquidate these securities at a substantial discount. Any such liquidation would force the Fund to sell the more liquid portion of its portfolio.

PAYMENT EXPECTATIONS. Lower-quality and comparable unrated securities typically contain redemption, call or prepayment provisions which permit the issuer of such securities containing such provisions to, at its discretion, redeem the securities. During periods of falling interest rates, issuers of these securities are likely to redeem or prepay the securities and refinance them with debt securities with a lower interest rate. To the extent an issuer is able to refinance the securities, or otherwise redeem them, the Fund may have to replace the securities with a lower yielding security, which would result in a lower return for the Fund.

CREDIT RATINGS. Credit ratings issued by credit rating agencies are designed to evaluate the safety of principal and interest payments of rated securities. They do not, however, evaluate the market value risk of lower-quality securities and, therefore, may not fully reflect the true risks of an investment. In addition, credit rating agencies may or may not make timely changes in a rating to reflect changes in the economy or in the condition of the issuer that affect the market value of the security. Consequently, credit ratings are used only as a preliminary indicator of investment quality. Investments in lower-quality and comparable unrated obligations will be more dependent on the Adviser's credit analysis than would be the case with investments in investment-grade debt obligations. The Adviser employs its own credit research and analysis, which includes a study of existing debt, capital structure, ability to service debt and to pay dividends, the issuer's sensitivity to economic conditions, its operating history and the current trend of earnings. The Adviser continually monitors the investments in the Fund's portfolio and carefully evaluates whether to dispose of or to retain lower-quality and comparable unrated securities whose credit ratings or credit quality may have changed.

LIQUIDITY AND VALUATION. The Fund may have difficulty disposing of certain lower-quality and comparable unrated securities because there may be a thin trading market for such securities. Because not all dealers maintain markets in all lower-quality and comparable unrated securities, there is no established retail secondary market for many of these securities. The Fund anticipates that such securities could be sold only to a limited number of dealers or institutional investors. To the extent a secondary trading market does exist, it is generally not as liquid as the secondary market for higher-rated securities. The lack of a liquid secondary market may have an adverse impact on the market price of the security. As a result, the Fund's asset value and ability to dispose of particular securities, when necessary to meet the Fund's liquidity needs or in response to a specific economic event, may be impacted. The lack of a liquid secondary market for certain securities may also make it more difficult for the Fund to obtain accurate market quotations for purposes of valuing the Fund's portfolio. Market quotations are generally available on many lower-quality and comparable unrated issues only from a limited number of dealers and may not necessarily represent firm bids of such dealers or prices for actual sales. During periods of thin trading, the spread between bid and asked prices is likely to increase significantly. In addition, adverse publicity and investor percep-

tions, whether or not based on fundamental analysis, may decrease the values and liquidity of lower-quality and comparable unrated securities, especially in a thinly traded market.

LEGISLATION. Legislation may be adopted, from time to time, that is designed to limit the use of certain lower-quality and comparable unrated securities by certain issuers. It is anticipated that if additional legislation is enacted or proposed, it could have a material affect on the value of these securities and the existence of a secondary trading market for the securities.

WHEN-ISSUED SECURITIES

The Fund may from time to time invest up to 5% of its net assets in securities purchased on a "when-issued" basis. The price of securities purchased on a when-issued basis is fixed at the time the commitment to purchase is made, but delivery of and payment for the securities take place at a later date. Normally, the settlement date occurs within 45 days of the purchase. During the period between the purchase and settlement, no payment is made by the Fund to the issuer, no interest is accrued on debt securities and no dividend income is earned on equity securities. Forward commitments involve a risk of loss if the value of the security to be purchased declines prior to the settlement date, which risk is in addition to the risk of decline in value of the Fund's other assets. While when-issued securities may be sold prior to the settlement date, the Fund intends to purchase such securities with the purpose of actually acquiring them. At the time the Fund makes the commitment to purchase a security on a when-issued basis, it will record the transaction and reflect the value of the security in determining its net asset value. The Fund does not believe that its net asset value will be adversely affected by its purchases of securities on a when-issued basis.

The Fund will maintain cash and marketable securities equal in value to commitments for when-issued securities. Such segregated securities either will mature or, if necessary, be sold on or before the settlement date. When the time comes to pay for when-issued securities, the Fund will meet its obligations from then available cash flow, sale of the securities held in the separate account described above, sale of other securities or, although it would not normally expect to do so, from the sale of the when-issued securities themselves (which may have a market value greater or less than the Fund's payment obligation).

UNSEASONED COMPANIES

The Fund may invest up to 5% of its total assets in unseasoned companies, which are companies with less than three years of continuous operation. While smaller companies generally have potential for rapid growth, they often involve higher risks because smaller companies lack the management experience, financial resources, product diversification and competitive strengths of larger corporations. In addition, in many instances, the securities of smaller companies are traded only over-the-counter or on regional securities exchanges, and the frequency and volume of their trading is substantially less than is typical of larger companies. Therefore, the securities of these smaller companies may be subject to wider price fluctuations. When making large sales, the Fund may have to sell portfolio holdings of these companies at discounts from quoted prices or may have to make a series of smaller sales over an extended period of time due to the trading volume in smaller company securities.

SHORT SALES AGAINST THE BOX

The Fund may sell securities short against the box to hedge unrealized gains on portfolio securities. Selling securities short against the box involves selling a security that the Fund owns or has the right to acquire, for delivery at a specified date in the future. If the Fund sells securities short against the box, it may protect unrealized gains, but will lose the opportunity to profit on such securities if the price rises.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Under the laws of the State of Maryland, the Board of Directors of the Corporation is responsible for managing the Corporation's business and affairs. The Directors and Officers of the Corporation, together with information as to their principal business occupations during the last five years, and other information, are shown below. Directors who are deemed "interested persons" as defined in the 1940 Act, are indicated below under the heading "Interested Directors." Directors who are not deemed to be "interested persons" are indicated below under the heading "Independent Directors."

INTERESTED DIRECTORS

Name and Age	Position with the Corporation	Term of Office and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupations During Past 5 Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen by Director	Other Director- ships Held during Past 5 Years
Mark D. Foster (1) Born 1958	Director, Chairman and President of the Corporation	Indefinite term since 1998	Chief Investment Officer, Kirr, Marbach & Company, LLC	1	None
Mickey Kim (2) Born 1958	Director, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and Chief Compliance Officer	Indefinite term since 1998; Chief Compliance Officer since 2004	Chief Operating Officer and Chief Compliance Officer, Kirr, Marbach & Company, LLC	1	Director, CrossAmerica Partners LP

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Name and Age	Position with the Corporation	Term of Office and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupations During Past 5 Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen by Director	Other Director- ships Held during Past 5 Years
Jeffrey N. Brown Born 1959	Director	Indefinite term since 1998	President, Travel Indiana LLC (2016- present); President, Home News Enterprises (1998- 2016)	1	None
Mark E. Chesnut Born 1947	Director	Indefinite term since 1998	Retired, formerly Vice- President, Cummins Inc., an engine manufacturer and power generation company	1	None
John A. Elwood Born 1970	Director	Indefinite term since 2018	President, Elwood Staffing Services, Inc. (1996-present)	1	None

(1) Mark D. Foster is an owner and officer of the Adviser.

(2) Mickey Kim is an owner and officer of the Adviser.

The address for all of the Directors is Kirr, Marbach & Company, LLC, 621 Washington Street, Columbus, Indiana 47201.

The Board of Directors consists of five Directors, two of whom are "interested persons" including the Chairman of the Board. The Board does not have a lead "independent director." The Board believes that this structure, combined with the Board committees discussed below, best allows it to handle its responsibilities to the Fund efficiently and thoroughly. The Board of Directors is responsible for general oversight of the Fund's operations, including risk management. The Board of Directors does not directly oversee the day-to-day operations of the Fund, but does ultimately select, approve and monitor the officers and service providers that carryout the Fund's operations and the policies and procedures that guide those officers and service providers. The Board of Directors meets at least quarterly, and more frequently if needed, to review the Fund's operations. As part of that process, the Board reviews reports from, and engages in discussions with, the Chief Compliance Officer, the Adviser, the Administrator and other service providers.

The Board also oversees risk through its committees. The Board of Directors has a standing Audit Committee and a Pricing Committee. The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the integrity of the Corporation's financial

reporting process and internal control systems, monitoring the overall performance of the Corporation's fund accounting agent and providing an avenue of communication among the independent accountants, the fund accounting agent and the Board of Directors. The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Brown (Chairperson), Mr. Chesnut and Mr. Elwood, none whom is deemed an "interested person," as defined in the 1940 Act. The Audit Committee met twice during the past fiscal year. The Pricing Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in making fair value determinations of securities when no market quotations are readily available. The members of the Pricing Committee are Mr. Kim (Chairperson), Mr. Foster and Mr. Brown (Mr. Chesnut is an alternate). The Pricing Committee only meets in the unusual circumstance that it has to price an investment, and no such meetings were required during the past fiscal year.

The following is a summary of specific experience, qualifications, attributes, and skills that led to the conclusion that each director should serve on the Fund's Board:

Mark D. Foster is a Chartered Financial Analyst and joined Kirr, Marbach and Company, LLC ("KM"), the Fund's adviser, in 1987. Mr. Foster has been KM's Chief Investment Officer since 1997 and brings to the Board particular experience with financial markets and the day-to-day management and operation of the Fund. In addition, Mr. Foster has 21 years of experience as a director of the Fund.

Mickey Kim is a Chartered Financial Analyst and joined KM in 1986. Mr. Kim has been KM's Chief Operating Officer since 1996 and Chief Compliance Officer since 2004 and brings to the Board particular experience with securities regulatory matters and the day-to-day management and operation of the Fund. In addition, Mr. Kim has 21 years of experience as a director of the Fund.

Jeffrey N. Brown is currently President of Travel Indiana LLC, an Indiana travel media company. Previously, he served as President of Home News Enterprises, a newspaper publishing company. He brings to the Board particular experience with advertising/marketing, media relations and business management. In addition, Mr. Brown has 21 years of experience as a director of the Fund.

Mark E. Chesnut is retired, formerly Vice-President of Cummins, Inc., a Fortune 500 engine manufacturer and power generation company, and brings to the Board particular experience with business management. In addition, Mr. Chesnut has 21 years of experience as a director of the Fund.

John A. Elwood is currently President of Elwood Staffing Services, Inc., a multi-state staffing, recruiting and human resources company. Mr. Elwood brings to the board particular experience related to corporate leadership, business management, and supervision of financial accounting personnel and processes. Mr. Elwood Joined the Board in 2018.

As of December 31, 2019, Officers and Directors of the Corporation beneficially owned 14.35% of the shares of common stock of the Fund's then outstanding shares. Directors and Officers of the Corporation who are also officers, directors, employees or shareholders of the Adviser do not receive any remuneration from the Fund for serving as directors or officers.

The following table sets forth dollar ranges of securities beneficially owned by each Director as of December 31, 2019.

	Dollar Range of Equity Securities in
Director	the Fund
INDEPENDENT	
DIRECTORS	
Jeffrey N. Brown	Over \$100,000
Mark E. Chesnut	Over \$100,000
John A. Elwood	\$0
INTERESTED DIRECTORS	
Mark D. Foster	Over \$100,000
Mickey Kim	Over \$100,000

The following table provides information relating to compensation paid to directors of the Corporation for their services as such for the period October 1, 2018 to September 30, 2019:

Name	Con	Cash npensation(1)	Other Compensation	Total
Mark D. Foster	\$	0	\$ 0	\$ 0
Mickey Kim	\$	0	\$ 0	\$ 0
Jeffrey N. Brown	\$	4,000	\$ 0	\$ 4,000
Mark E. Chesnut	\$	4,000	\$ 0	\$ 4,000
John A. Elwood	\$	4,000	\$ 0	\$ 4,000
All directors as a group	\$	12,000	\$ 0	\$ 12,000

⁽¹⁾ Each director who is not deemed an "interested person" as defined in the 1940 Act, received \$1,000 for each Board of Directors meeting attended and reasonable expenses incurred in connection therewith. The Board held four meetings during fiscal 2019 and the Audit Committee held two meetings during fiscal 2019.

CODE OF ETHICS

The Corporation and the Adviser have adopted an Amended and Restated Code of Ethics (the "Code of Ethics") under Rule 17j-1 of the 1940 Act which governs the personal trading activities of all "Access Persons." Access Persons generally include all directors and officers of the Corporation and the Adviser, as well as certain employees and control persons of the Corporation and the Adviser who have access to information regarding the purchase or sale of securities by the Corporation. The Code of Ethics is based upon the principle that Access Persons have a fiduciary duty to place the interests of Fund shareholders above their own.

The Code of Ethics permits Access Persons to buy or sell securities for their own accounts, including securities that may be purchased or held by the Fund, subject to certain exceptions. The Code of Ethics requires all Access Persons to complete quarterly transaction reports, acknowledge receipt of the Code of Ethics and certify annually that they have complied with the Code of Ethics. All Access Persons who are not disinterested directors of the Corporation have additional reporting requirements. The Code of Ethics requires Access Persons (other than Access Persons who are disinterested directors of the Corporation of securities by Access Persons (other than Access Persons who are disinterested directors of the Corporation) to preclear most securities transactions. The Code of Ethics also places other limitations on the acquisition of securities by Access Persons (other than Access Persons who are disinterested directors of the Corporation), including a ban on acquiring securities in an initial public offering, restrictions on the purchase of private placement securities and a prohibition from profiting on short-term trading in securities.

In addition, the Corporation has adopted a separate Code of Ethics, in compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which governs principal officers of the Corporation and deals with conflicts of interest between such officers and the Corporation.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING PROGRAM

The Corporation has established an Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Program (the "Program") as required by the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 ("USA PATRIOT Act"). The Program provides for the development of internal procedures and controls, designation of an anti-money laundering compliance officer, an ongoing training program and an independent audit function to determine the effectiveness of the Program.

Procedures to implement the Program include, but are not limited to, determining that the Corporation's Distributor and transfer agent have established proper anti-money laundering programs and procedures, reporting suspicious and/or fraudulent activity and reviewing all new account applications. The Corporation's transfer agent will perform certain functions with respect to anti-money laundering compliance. The Corporation will not transact business with any person or entity whose identity cannot be adequately verified under the provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act or whose name or country of origin appears on lists maintained by the U.S. Treasury Department or other governmental authorities. The Corporation's obligations under the Program and anti-money laundering laws and regulations could require taking certain actions which would impact a shareholder's ability to access funds invested in a Fund and/or reporting to governmental authorities.

PROXY VOTING

The Adviser has adopted written proxy voting policies and procedures (the "Proxy Policy") as required by Rule 206(4)-6 under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. The Proxy Policy has been adopted by the Fund as the general policies and procedures that the Adviser will use when voting proxies on behalf of the Fund in order to promote clients' investment objectives. The Adviser's Proxy Policy relies to a significant extent on the recommendations made by Institutional Shareholder Services Inc. ("ISS"), a leading provider of proxy voting and corporate governance services. The proxy voting committee reviews and approves all votes contrary to the recommendations of ISS, noting the reasons why it was in the clients' best interest to do so.

With respect to a situation that may present a conflict of interest between the Adviser and the Fund, the Proxy Policy provides several alternatives for addressing the conflict, such as obtaining the consent of the Fund's board of directors or a committee of its independent directors prior to voting the proxy or voting the proxy using the established objective policies of ISS.

Information about the Fund's voting record for the most recent 12-month period ended June 30 will be available (1) without charge, upon request, by calling 1-800-870-8039, and (2) on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov.

DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS

The Fund's Board of Directors has approved policies and procedures with respect to the disclosure of the Fund's portfolio securities. These policies and procedures are designed to ensure that such disclosure is in the best interests of the Fund's shareholders. Under no circumstances does the Fund or its affiliates receive any compensation in return for the disclosure of information about a Fund's portfolio securities holdings.

Disclosure of the Fund's complete holdings is required to be made quarterly within 60 days of the end of each fiscal quarter, in the annual and semi-annual reports to Fund shareholders, and in the quarterly holdings report on Form N-Q or Part F of Form N-PORT. These reports will be made available, free of charge, on the EDGAR database on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. In addition, the Fund will publicly disclose its top ten equity holdings on the Adviser's website at www.kmpartnersfunds.com within approximately 30 calendar days after each calendar quarter end. Such portfolio holdings information may be separately provided to any person, including rating and ranking organizations such as Lipper and Morningstar, at the same time that it is filed with the SEC or posted to the Adviser's website.

Disclosure of Non-Public Portfolio Holdings to Approved Recipients. In accordance with the Fund's policies and procedures, all portfolio holdings information that has not been made public in the manner described above is considered non-public information and may not be disclosed to anyone, other than the Fund's service providers. Pursuant to policies and procedures adopted by the Board, the Fund has ongoing arrangements to release certain portfolio holdings information on a daily basis to the Adviser, Administrator, transfer agent, Fund accounting agent and custodian and on an as needed basis to other third parties providing services to the Fund. The Adviser, Administrator, transfer agent, Fund accounting agent, Fund accounting agent and custodian receive certain portfolio holdings information daily in order to carry out the essential operations of the Fund. The Fund discloses portfolio holdings to its auditor, legal counsel, proxy voting services, pricing services, and printers. The lag between the date of the information and the date on which the information is disclosed will vary based on the identity of the party to whom the information is disclosed. For instance, the information may be provided to auditors within days of the end of an annual period, while the information may be given to legal counsel at any time. In each of these instances, a determination has been made that that such disclosure of non-public portfolio holdings information to the service provider is supported by a

legitimate business purpose and that the service provider is subject to an independent duty not to disclose or trade on the non-public information.

Additional Approved Disclosure. Disclosure of the Fund's non-public portfolio holdings information to any other persons not described above requires prior approval by the Fund's Chief Compliance Officer who shall consult with the Board of Directors prior to giving such approval. Such approval will be granted only when the recipient has a legitimate business need for the non-public information, the disclosure of such information is deemed to be in the best interest of shareholders of the Fund and the recipient agrees not to disclose or trade on such non-public information in accordance with the Fund's policies and procedures. It is not anticipated that such approvals will be granted except in rare and extraordinary circumstances. In addition, from time-to-time the Fund's portfolio manager may discuss with the media the fundamentals of certain portfolio companies held by the Fund, but may not disclose the Fund's position in such portfolio companies.

Oversight of Disclosure. The Fund's Board of Directors reviews the Fund's policies and procedures with respect to the disclosure of non-public portfolio holdings information periodically and may make revisions to such policies from time to time. In addition, the Chief Compliance Officer of the Company periodically reports to the Board of Directors regarding compliance with the Fund's policies and procedures.

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of December 31, 2019, the following person owned of record or is known by the Corporation to own of record or beneficially 5% or more of the outstanding shares of the Fund:

	No. of		Owned of Record or Beneficially or
Name and Address	Shares	Percentage	Both
Naban & Co.			
200 E. Jackson St.			
Muncie, IN 47305	416,424	13.89%	Record
Mark D. Foster			
621 Washington St.			
Columbus, IN 47201	235,973	7.87%	Record
Mickey Kim			
621 Washington St.			
Columbus, IN 47201	181,764	6.06%	Record

Based on the foregoing, as of December 31, 2019, the Fund is not aware of any one security holder beneficially owning 25% or more of the Fund's voting securities.

INVESTMENT ADVISER

Kirr, Marbach & Company, LLC (the "Adviser") is the investment adviser to the Fund. The Adviser is controlled by Mark Foster and Mickey Kim through their ownership interests in the Adviser. Mark Foster and Mickey Kim are also officers of the Adviser, as well as directors and officers of the Corporation.

The investment advisory agreement between the Corporation and the Adviser dated as of June 10, 2005 (the "Advisory Agreement") has an initial term of two years and thereafter is required to be approved annually by the Board of Directors of the Corporation or by vote of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities. Each annual renewal must also be approved by the vote of a majority of the Corporation's directors who are not parties to

the Advisory Agreement or interested persons of any such party, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval. The Advisory Agreement was initially approved by the Board of Directors, including by a majority of the disinterested directors, on November 16, 2004 and by a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities on May 16, 2005.

The Advisory Agreement is terminable without penalty, on 60 days' written notice by the Board of Directors of the Corporation, by vote of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities or by the Adviser, and will terminate automatically in the event of its assignment. The Advisory Agreement executed on June 10, 2005 replaced the previous advisory agreement between the Corporation and the Adviser dated July 26, 2002.

Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement, the Adviser manages the Fund's investments and business affairs, subject to the supervision of the Corporation's Board of Directors. At its expense, the Adviser provides office space and all necessary office facilities, equipment and personnel for managing the investments of the Fund. As compensation for its services, the Fund pays the Adviser an annual management fee of 1.00% of its average daily net assets. The advisory fee is accrued daily and paid monthly.

Pursuant to an agreement with the Fund, the Adviser will waive its management fee and reimburse the Fund's other expenses so that the Fund's total operating expenses do not exceed 1.45% of its average daily net assets until February 28, 2021. After such time, the Adviser may voluntarily waive all or a portion of its management fee and/or reimburse all or a portion of Fund operating expenses. The Adviser will waive fees and/or reimburse expenses on a monthly basis and the Adviser will pay the Fund by reducing its fee. Any fee waivers or expense reimbursements will have the effect of lowering the overall expense ratio for the Fund and increasing its overall return to investors at the time any such amounts were waived and/or reimbursed. Any such fee waiver or expense reimbursement is subject to later adjustment during the term of the Advisory Agreement to allow the Adviser to recoup amounts waived or reimbursed provided, however, that the Adviser shall only be entitled to recoup such amounts for a period of thirty-six months following the date on which such fee waiver or expense reimbursement was made. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the Fund paid the Adviser \$714,223 for its investment advisory services. If the Adviser had not agreed to waive its management fee for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the Adviser would have received an additional \$15,117 from the Fund for its investment advisory services. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the Fund paid the Adviser \$785,299 for its investment advisory services. If the Adviser had not agreed to waive its management fee for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the Adviser would have received an additional \$11,773 from the Fund for its investment advisory services. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the Fund paid the Adviser \$625,233 for its investment advisory services. If the Adviser had not agreed to waive its management fee for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the Adviser would have received an additional \$61,289 from the Fund for its investment advisory services.

PORTFOLIO MANAGER

Portfolio Manager. Mark Foster is the portfolio manager for the Fund.

Portfolio Manager Compensation. Mr. Foster, a principal of the Adviser, is entitled to base compensation for his position as the Adviser's portfolio manager and Chief Investment Officer, which consists of direct salary and benefits (including the Adviser's contribution to Mr. Foster's retirement plan account). In addition, as a significant owner of the Adviser, Mr. Foster shares in the profits of the Adviser. Mr. Foster is not directly compensated by the Fund, although the Fund pays the Adviser an investment management fee, which contributes to the profitability of the Adviser. Neither Mr. Foster's base total compensation nor his profit allocation is directly tied to the investment performance of the Fund or that of the Adviser's separate accounts. However, to the extent investment performance impacts the level of the Adviser's assets under management, the Adviser's revenues, which are based on assets under management, and profitability will be affected.

Other Accounts Managed by Portfolio Manager. The following table sets forth certain information regarding the other accounts managed by the Fund's portfolio manager as of September 30, 2019.

	Number of Other	Assets Managed	
Portfolio	Accounts	in	
Manager	Managed	Other Accounts	
Mark Foster	277	\$ 459.8	

The Adviser does not receive performance-based fees from any accounts, including registered investment companies. The portfolio manager does not manage other registered investment company accounts or pooled investment vehicle accounts. The Adviser believes there are no identifiable material conflicts of interests in connection with the portfolio manager's simultaneous management of the Fund and the other accounts because the Fund is managed in substantially the same manner as the other accounts, invested in liquid positions and the Adviser does not to any material extent purchase or sell limited opportunity investments for clients.

Ownership of Fund Shares by Portfolio Managers. The following table sets forth dollar ranges of securities beneficially owned by the Portfolio Manager as of September 30, 2019.

	Dollar Range of Equity Securities in
Portfolio Manager	the Fund
Mark Foster	Over \$1,000,000
	19

FUND TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE

Under the Advisory Agreement, the Adviser, in its capacity as portfolio manager, is responsible for decisions to buy and sell securities for the Fund and for the placement of the Fund's securities business, the negotiation of the commissions to be paid on such transactions and the allocation of portfolio brokerage business. The Adviser seeks to obtain the best execution at the best security price available with respect to each transaction. The best price to the Fund means the best net price without regard to the mix between purchase or sale price and commission, if any. While the Adviser seeks reasonably competitive commission rates, the Fund does not necessarily pay the lowest available commission. Brokerage will not be allocated based on the sale of the Fund's shares.

When the Adviser buys or sells the same security for two or more advisory accounts, including the Fund, the Adviser may place concurrent orders with a single broker to be executed as a single, aggregated block in order to facilitate orderly and efficient execution. Whenever the Adviser does so, each advisory account on whose behalf an order was placed will receive the average price at which the block was executed and will bear a proportionate share of all transaction costs, based on the size of the advisory account's order. While the Adviser believes combining orders for advisory accounts will, over time, be advantageous to all participants, in particular cases the average price at which the block was executed could be less advantageous to one particular advisory account than if the advisory account had been the only account effecting the transaction or had completed its transaction before the other participants.

Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Section 28(e)"), permits an investment adviser, under certain circumstances, to cause an account to pay a broker or dealer who supplies brokerage and research services a commission for effecting a transaction in excess of the amount of commission another broker or dealer would have charged for effecting the transaction. Brokerage and research services include: (a) furnishing advice as to the value of securities, the advisability of investing, purchasing or selling securities and the availability of securities or purchasers or sellers of securities; (b) furnishing analyses and reports concerning issuers, industries, securities, economic factors and trends, portfolio strategy and the performance of accounts; and (c) effecting securities transactions and performing functions incidental thereto (such as clearance, settlement and custody).

In selecting brokers or dealers, the Adviser considers investment and market information and other research, such as economic, securities and performance measurement research provided by such brokers or dealers and the quality and reliability of brokerage services, including execution capability, performance and financial responsibility. Accordingly, the commissions charged by any such broker or dealer may be greater than the amount another firm might charge if the Adviser determines in good faith that the amount of such commissions is reasonable in relation to the value of the research information and brokerage services provided by such broker or dealer to the Fund. The Adviser believes that the research information received in this manner provides the Fund with benefits by supplementing the research otherwise available to the Fund. Such higher commissions will not be paid by the Fund unless (a) the Adviser determines in good faith that the amount is reasonable in relation to the services in terms of the particular transaction or in terms of the Adviser's overall responsibilities with respect to the accounts, including the Fund, as to which it exercises investment discretion; (b) such payment is made in compliance with the provisions of Section 28(e) and other applicable state and federal laws; and (c) in the opinion of the Adviser, the total commissions paid by the Fund will be reasonable in relation to the benefits to the Fund over the long term.

The aggregate amount of brokerage commission paid by the Fund for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 was \$36,914. For the same period, the Fund paid \$30,041 in brokerage commissions with respect to \$27,328,889 in transactions for which research services were provided and the Fund did not acquire any stock of its regular brokers or dealers. The aggregate amount of brokerage commissions with respect to \$22,312,008 in transactions for which research services were provided and the Fund for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 was \$25,616. For the same period, the Fund paid \$23,407 in brokerage commissions with respect to \$22,312,008 in transactions for which research services were provided and the Fund did not acquire any stock of its regular brokers or dealers. The aggregate amount of brokerage commission paid by the Fund for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 was \$35,343. For the same period, the Fund paid \$28,650 in brokerage commissions with respect to \$26,838,035 in transactions for which research services were provided and the Fund did not acquire any stock of its regular brokers or dealers.

The Adviser may, from time to time, cause advisory accounts, including the Fund, to participate in initial public offerings ("IPOs"). The Adviser's policy is to allocate, to the extent operationally and otherwise practical, IPOs to

each advisory account without regard to the size or fee structure of the advisory account. The Adviser allocates IPOs to advisory accounts based on numerous issues, including cash availability, the time advisory account funds have been available for investment or have had investments available for sale, investment objectives and restrictions, an advisory account's participation in other IPOs and relative size of portfolio holdings of the same or comparable securities. An additional consideration used in the Adviser's allocation of IPOs is the relative investment performance of an advisory account versus the index benchmarks and/or the average of all of the Adviser's advisory accounts. From time to time, the Adviser may allocate IPOs to enhance the performance of advisory accounts that the Adviser believes have lagged relative to the performance of other accounts. The Adviser's participation in and allocation of IPOs is extremely limited.

The Adviser places portfolio transactions for other advisory accounts managed by the Adviser. Research services furnished by firms through which the Fund effects its securities transactions may be used by the Adviser in servicing all of its accounts; not all of such services may be used by the Adviser in connection with the Fund. The Adviser believes it is not possible to measure separately the benefits from research services to each of the accounts (including the Fund) managed by it. Because the volume and nature of the trading activities of the accounts are not uniform, the amount of commissions in excess of those charged by another broker paid by each account for brokerage and research services will vary. However, the Adviser believes such costs to the Fund will not be disproportionate to the benefits received by the Fund on a continuing basis. The Adviser seeks to allocate portfolio transactions equitably whenever concurrent decisions are made to purchase or sell securities by the Fund and another advisory account. In some cases, this procedure could have an adverse effect on the price or the amount of securities available to the Fund. In making such allocations between the Fund and other advisory accounts, the main factors considered by the Adviser are the respective investment objectives, the relative size of portfolio holdings of the same or comparable securities, the availability of cash for investment and the size of investment commitments generally held.

CUSTODIAN

As custodian of the Fund's assets pursuant to a Custodian Servicing Agreement with the Corporation, U.S. Bank, N.A., ("U.S. Bank"), 1555 N. RiverCenter Drive, Suite 300, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53212, has custody of all securities and cash of the Fund, delivers and receives payment for portfolio securities sold, receives and pays for portfolio securities purchased, collects income from investments and performs other duties, all as directed by the officers of the Corporation. For these services, U.S. Bancorp receives from the Corporation out-of-pocket expenses plus the following aggregate annual fees, based on the Fund's aggregate average net assets:

Custodian Servicing Fees

Average net assets .02 of 1%*

* Subject to a minimum fee of \$3,000

TRANSFER AGENT AND DIVIDEND-DISBURSING AGENT

U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, doing business as U.S. Bank Global Fund Services ("Fund Services"), 615 East Michigan Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202, acts as transfer agent and dividend-disbursing agent for the Fund. Fund Services is compensated based on an annual fee per open account of \$14 (subject to a minimum annual fee of \$22,500) plus out-of-pocket expenses, such as postage and printing expenses in connection with shareholder communications. Fund Services also receives an annual fee per closed account of \$14.

From time to time, the Corporation, on behalf of the Fund, directly or indirectly through arrangements with the Adviser, the Distributor (as defined below) or Fund Services, may pay amounts to third parties that provide transfer agent type services and other administrative services relating to the Fund to persons who beneficially have interests in the Fund, such as participants in 401(k) plans. These services may include, among other things, sub-accounting services, transfer agent type activities, answering inquiries relating to the Fund, transmitting proxy statements, annual reports, updated prospectuses, other communications regarding the Fund and related services as the Fund or beneficial owners may reasonably request. In such cases, the Fund will not pay fees based on the number of beneficial owners at a rate that is greater than the rate the Fund is currently paying Fund Services for providing these services to the Fund's shareholders (i.e., \$14 per account plus expenses).

ADMINISTRATOR

Pursuant to a Fund Administration Servicing Agreement and a Fund Accounting Servicing Agreement, Fund Services also performs accounting and certain compliance and tax reporting functions for the Corporation. For these services, Fund Services receives from the Corporation out-of-pocket expenses plus the following aggregate annual fees, based on the Fund's aggregate average net assets:

Administrative Services Fees

First \$200 million of average net assets	.06 of 1%*
Next \$500 million of average net assets	.05 of 1%
Average net assets in excess of \$700 million	.03 of 1%
* Subject to a minimum fee of \$35,000.	
Accounting Services Fees	
First \$40 million of average net assets	\$22,000
Next \$200 million of average net assets	.01 of 1%
Average net assets in excess of \$240 million	.005 of 1%

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, Fund Services received \$46,380 from the Fund under the Fund Administration Servicing Agreement and \$27,270 from the Fund under the Fund Accounting Servicing Agreement. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, Fund Services received \$49,383 from the Fund under the Fund Administration Servicing Agreement and \$27,949 from the Fund under the Fund Accounting Servicing Agreement. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, Fund Services received \$44,446 from the Fund under the Fund Administration Servicing Agreement and \$27,028 from the Fund under the Fund Accounting Servicing Agreement.

DISTRIBUTOR AND PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTOR

Under a distribution agreement dated November 25, 2003 (the "Distribution Agreement"), Quasar Distributors, LLC (the "Distributor"), 777 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202, acts as principal distributor of the Fund's shares. The Distribution Agreement provides that the Distributor will use its best efforts to distribute the Fund's shares, which shares are offered for sale by the Fund continuously at net asset value per share without the imposition of a sales charge. Pursuant to the terms of the Distribution Agreement, the Distributor receives from the Corporation out-of-pocket expenses plus an annual fee equal to the greater of (i) \$15,000 or (ii) .01 % of the Fund's net assets, computed daily and payable monthly. As compensation for its services under the Distribution Agreement, the Distributor may retain all or a portion of the distribution and shareholder servicing fees payable under the 12b-1 Plan (as defined below). All or a portion of the distribution and shareholder servicing fee may be used by the Distributor to pay such expenses under the distribution and shareholder servicing plan discussed below.

DISTRIBUTION AND SHAREHOLDER SERVICING PLAN

The Corporation, on behalf of the Fund, has adopted a plan pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act (the "12b-1 Plan"), which authorizes it to pay the Distributor, in its capacity as the principal distributor of Fund shares, or any Recipient (as defined below) a distribution and shareholder servicing fee of up to 0.25% per annum of the Fund's average daily net assets. Under the terms of the 12b-1 Plan, the Corporation or the Distributor may pay all or a portion of this fee to any securities dealer, financial institution or any other person (the "Recipient") who renders assistance in distributing or promoting the sale of Fund shares, or who provides certain shareholder services to Fund shareholders, pursuant to a written agreement (the "Related Agreement"). The 12b-1 Plan is a "reimbursement" plan, which means that the fees paid by the Fund are intended as reimbursement for services rendered up to the maximum allowable fee. If more money for services rendered is due than is immediately payable because of the expense limitation under the 12b-1 Plan, the unpaid amount is carried forward from period to period while the 12b-1 Plan is in effect until such time as it may be paid. No interest, carrying or other forward charge will be borne by the Fund with respect to unpaid amounts carried forward. The 12b-1 Plan has the effect of increasing the Fund's expenses from what they would otherwise be. The Board of Directors reviews the Fund's distribution and shareholder servicing fee payments in connection with its determination as to the continuance of the 12b-1 Plan.

The 12b-1 Plan, including forms of Related Agreements, has been unanimously approved and reapproved by a majority of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, and of the members of the Board who are not "interested persons" of the Corporation as defined in the 1940 Act and who have no direct or indirect financial interest in the operation of the 12b-1 Plan or any Related Agreements (the "Disinterested Directors") voting separately. The 12b-1 Plan, and any Related Agreement which is entered into, will continue in effect for a period of more than one year only so long as its continuance is specifically approved at least annually by a vote of a majority of the Corporation's Board of Directors and of the Disinterested Directors, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on the 12b-1 Plan or the Related Agreement, as applicable. In addition, the 12b-1 Plan and any Related Agreement may be terminated at any time, without penalty, by vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund, or by vote of a majority of Disinterested Directors (on not more than 60 days' written notice in the case of the Related Agreement only). Payment of the distribution and shareholder servicing fee is to be made monthly. The Distributor and/or Recipients will provide reports or invoices to the Corporation of all amounts payable to them (and the purposes for which the amounts were expended) pursuant to the 12b-1 Plan.

INTERESTS OF CERTAIN PERSONS

With the exception of the Adviser, in its capacity as the Fund's investment adviser, and the Distributor, in its capacity as principal distributor of Fund shares, no "interested person" of the Fund, as defined in the 1940 Act, and no director of the Fund who is not an "interested person" has or had a direct or indirect financial interest in the 12b-1 Plan or any Related Agreement.



ANTICIPATED BENEFITS TO THE FUND

The Board of Directors considered various factors in connection with its decision to continue the 12b-1 Plan, including: (a) the nature and causes of the circumstances which make continuation of the 12b-1 Plan necessary and appropriate; (b) the way in which the 12b-1 Plan addresses those circumstances, including the nature and potential amount of expenditures; (c) the nature of the anticipated benefits; (d) the merits of possible alternative plans or pricing structures; (e) the relationship of the 12b-1 Plan to other distribution efforts of the Fund; and (f) the possible benefits of the 12b-1 Plan to any other person relative to those of the Fund.

Based upon its review of the foregoing factors and the material presented to it, and in light of its fiduciary duties under relevant state law and the 1940 Act, the Board of Directors determined, in the exercise of its business judgment, that the 12b-1 Plan was reasonably likely to benefit the Fund and its shareholders in at least one or several potential ways. Specifically, the Board concluded that the Distributor and any Recipients operating under Related Agreements would have little or no incentive to incur promotional expenses on behalf of the Fund if a 12b-1 Plan were not in place to reimburse them, thus making the adoption of such 12b-1 Plan important to the initial success and thereafter, continued viability of the Fund. In addition, the Board determined that the payment of distribution fees to these persons should motivate them to provide an enhanced level of service to Fund shareholders, which would, of course, benefit such shareholders. Finally, the continuation of the 12b-1 Plan would help to increase net assets under management in a relatively short amount of time, given the marketing efforts on the part of the Distributor and Recipients to sell Fund shares, which should result in certain economies of scale.

While there is no assurance that the expenditure of Fund assets to finance distribution of Fund shares will have the anticipated results, the Board of Directors believes there is a reasonable likelihood that one or more of such benefits will result, and since the Board will be in a position to monitor the distribution and shareholder servicing expenses of the Fund, it will be able to evaluate the benefit of such expenditures in deciding whether to continue the 12b-1 Plan.

AMOUNTS PAID UNDER THE PLAN

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, pursuant to the terms of the 12b-1 Plan, the Fund paid \$65,612. Of this amount, \$0 was spent on printing of annual reports and for literature fulfillment for other than current shareholders and \$41,988 was paid to broker-dealers. In such period, the Distributor received \$23,624 of the amounts paid under the 12b-1 Plan. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, pursuant to the terms of the 12b-1 Plan, the Fund paid \$61,693. Of this amount, \$0 was spent on printing of annual reports and for literature fulfillment for other than current shareholders and \$44,236 was paid to broker-dealers. In such period, the Distributor received \$17,457 of the amounts paid under the 12b-1 Plan. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, pursuant to the terms of the 12b-1 Plan, the Fund paid \$58,616. Of this amount, \$0 was spent on printing of annual reports and for literature fulfillment for other sand \$37,415 was paid to broker-dealers. In such period, the Distributor received \$21,201 of the amounts paid under the 12b-1 Plan.

The Fund has entered into agreements with broker-dealers whereby Fund shares are made available for purchases/sales on the brokerdealers' mutual fund platforms. The Adviser initially paid an upfront fee of \$6,000 to National Investor Services Corp. for inclusion on the TD Ameritrade mutual fund platform, an upfront fee of \$18,000 to Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. for inclusion in the Schwab Mutual Fund MarketPlace with Mutual Fund OneSource services and \$10,000 to National Financial Services, LLC for inclusion on the Fidelity Investments mutual fund platform. The Fund and the Adviser may elect to pursue inclusion on other mutual fund platforms with similar agreements.

The Fund has executed Rule 12b-1 Related Agreements with certain broker-dealers whereby the broker-dealer is compensated for providing distribution and marketing services in the promotion of the Fund's shares. The Fund may seek to execute Rule 12b-1 Related Agreements with additional broker-dealers in the future. The Adviser may pay compensation in addition to amounts paid by the Fund under 12b-1 Related Agreements.

PURCHASE, EXCHANGE AND PRICING OF SHARES

APPLICATIONS

In compliance with the USA Patriot Act of 2001, the Transfer Agent will verify certain information on your account application as part of the Fund's Anti-Money Laundering Program. As requested on the application, you must supply your full name, date of birth, social security number and permanent street address. If you are opening the account in the name of a legal entity (e.g., partnership, limited liability company, business trust, corporation, etc.), you must supply the identity of the beneficial owners. Mailing addresses containing only a P.O. Box will not be accepted. Please contact the Transfer Agent at 1-800-870-8039 if you need additional assistance when completing your Application. If the Fund does not have a reasonable belief of the identity of a customer, the account may be rejected or the customer may not be allowed to perform a transaction on the account until such information is received. The Fund may also reserve the right to close the account within 5 business days if clarifying information/documentation is not received.

AUTOMATIC INVESTMENT PLAN

The Automatic Investment Plan ("AIP") allows you to make regular, systematic investments in the Fund from your bank checking or savings account. The minimum initial investment for investors using the AIP is \$1,000. To establish the AIP, complete the appropriate section in the shareholder application. Under certain circumstances (such as discontinuation of the AIP before the Fund's minimum initial investment is reached), the Fund reserves the right to close the investor's account. Prior to closing any account for failure to reach the minimum initial investment, the Fund will give the investor written notice and 60 days in which to reinstate the AIP or otherwise reach the minimum initial investment. You should consider your financial ability to continue in the AIP until the minimum initial investment amount is met because the Fund has the right to close an investor's account for failure to reach the minimum initial investment. Such closing may occur in periods of declining share prices.

Under the AIP, you may choose to make monthly investments on the days of your choosing (or the next business day thereafter) from your financial institution in amounts of \$100 or more. There is no service fee for participating in the AIP. However, a service fee of \$25 will be deducted from your Fund account for any AIP purchase that does not clear due to insufficient funds or, if prior to notifying the Fund in writing or by telephone of your intention to terminate the plan, you close your bank account or in any manner prevent withdrawal of funds from the designated account. You can set up the AIP with any financial institution that is a member of Automated Clearing House.

The AIP is a method of using dollar cost averaging, which is an investment strategy that involves investing a fixed amount of money at a regular time interval. However, a program of regular investment cannot ensure a profit or protect against a loss from declining markets. By always investing the same amount, you will be purchasing more shares when the price is low and fewer shares when the price is high. Since such a program involves continuous investment regardless of fluctuating share values, you should consider your financial ability to continue the program through periods of low share price levels.

INDIVIDUAL RETIREMENT ACCOUNTS

In addition to purchasing Fund shares as described in the Prospectus under "How to Purchase Shares," individuals may establish their own tax-sheltered individual retirement accounts ("IRAs"). The Fund offers the following types of IRAs, including the Traditional IRA, that can be adopted by executing the appropriate Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") Form.

TRADITIONAL IRA. In a Traditional IRA, amounts contributed to the IRA may be tax deductible at the time of contribution depending on whether the investor is an "active participant" in an employer-sponsored retirement plan and the investor's income. Distributions from a Traditional IRA will be taxed at distribution except to the extent that the distribution represents a return of the investor's own contributions for which the investor did not claim (or was not eligible to claim) a deduction. Distributions prior to age 59-1/2 may be subject to an additional 10% tax applicable to certain premature distributions. Distributions must commence by April 1 following the calendar year in which the investor attains age 70-1/2. Failure to begin distributions by this date (or distributions that do not equal certain minimum thresholds) may result in adverse tax consequences.

ROTH IRA. In a Roth IRA (sometimes known as the American Dream IRA), amounts contributed to the IRA are taxed at the time of contribution, but distributions from the IRA are not subject to tax if the investor has held the IRA for certain minimum periods of time (generally, 5 years and until attaining age 59-1/2). Investors whose income exceeds certain limits are ineligible to contribute to a Roth IRA. Distributions that do not satisfy the requirements for tax-free withdrawal are subject to income taxes (and possibly penalty taxes) to the extent that the distribution exceeds the investor's contributions to the IRA. The minimum distribution rules applicable to Traditional IRAs do not apply during the lifetime of the investor. Following the death of the investor, certain minimum distribution rules apply.

For Traditional and Roth IRAs, the maximum annual contribution generally is equal to the lesser of \$6,000 for 2020 or 100% of the investor's taxable compensation (earned income). Individuals who have reached the year they will become 50 years old are eligible to make catch-up contributions in the amount of \$1,000 for 2020. An individual may also contribute to a Traditional IRA or Roth IRA on behalf of his or her spouse provided that the individual has sufficient compensation (earned income). Contributions to a Traditional IRA reduce the allowable contributions under a Roth IRA, and contributions to a Roth IRA reduce the allowable contribution to a Traditional IRA.

SIMPLIFIED EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN. A Traditional IRA may also be used in conjunction with a Simplified Employee Pension Plan ("SEP-IRA"). A SEP-IRA is established by executing Form 5305-SEP together with setting up a SEP-IRA for each eligible employee. Generally, a SEP-IRA allows an employer (including a self-employed individual) to purchase shares with tax deductible contributions not exceeding annually for any one participant the lesser of \$57,000 or 25% of compensation (disregarding for this purpose compensation in excess of \$285,000 per year). The \$57,000 and \$285,000 limits are for 2020; the limits are adjusted periodically for cost of living increases. A number of special rules apply to SEP Plans, including a requirement that contributions generally be made on behalf of all employees of the employer (including for this purpose a sole proprietorship or partnership) who satisfy certain minimum participation requirements. A SEP-IRA may be converted to a Roth IRA (tax will be due on the conversion amount in the tax year of the conversion).

SIMPLE IRA. An IRA may also be used in connection with a SIMPLE Plan established by the investor's employer (or by a selfemployed individual). When this is done, the IRA is known as a SIMPLE IRA, although it is similar to a Traditional IRA with the exceptions described below. Under a SIMPLE Plan, the investor may elect to have his or her employer make salary reduction contributions to the SIMPLE IRA of up to \$13,500 per year for 2020. The limit is increased periodically for cost of living increases. Individuals who have reached the year they will become 50 years old are eligible to make catch-up contributions in the amount of \$3,000 for 2020. In addition, the employer will contribute certain amounts to the investor's SIMPLE IRA, either as a matching contribution to those participants who make salary reduction contributions or as a non-elective contribution to all eligible participants whether or not making salary reduction contributions. A number of special rules apply to SIMPLE Plans, including (1) a SIMPLE Plan generally is available only to employers with fewer than 100 employees; (2) contributions must be made on behalf of all employees of the employer (other than bargaining unit employees) who satisfy certain minimum participation requirements; (3) contributions are made to a special SIMPLE IRA that is separate and apart from the other IRAs of employees; (4) the distribution excise tax (if otherwise applicable) is increased to 25% on withdrawals during the first two years of participation in a SIMPLE IRA; and (5) amounts withdrawn during the first two years of participation may be rolled over tax-free only into another SIMPLE IRA (and not to a Traditional IRA or to a Roth IRA). A SIMPLE IRA is established by executing Form 5304-SIMPLE or Form 5305-SIMPLE together with setting up an IRA for each eligible employee. After the two-year funding period, a SIMPLE IRA can be converted to a Roth IRA (tax will be due on the conversion amount in the tax year of the conversion) or transferred to another IRA account.

Under current IRS regulations, all IRA applicants must be furnished a disclosure statement containing information specified by the IRS. Applicants generally have the right to revoke their account within seven calendar days after receiving the disclosure statement and obtain a full refund of their contributions (days will be counted from the date of the post mark). U.S. Bank, the Fund's custodian, may, in its discretion, hold the initial contribution uninvested until the expiration of the seven-calendar day revocation period. U.S. Bank does not anticipate that it will exercise its discretion but reserves the right to do so.

MONEY MARKET EXCHANGE

As a service to our shareholders, the Fund has established a program whereby our shareholders can exchange shares of the Fund for shares of the First American Treasury Obligations Fund, Class A (the "First American Fund"). Exchange requests are available for exchanges of \$1,000 or more. The First American Fund is a no-load money market fund managed by an affiliate of Fund Services. The First American Fund is unrelated to the Corporation or the Fund. However, the Distributor may be compensated by the First American Fund for servicing and related services provided in connection with exchanges made by shareholders of the Fund. This exchange privilege is a convenient way to buy shares in a money market fund in order to respond to changes in your goals or in market conditions. Before exchanging into the First American Fund, please read the prospectus, which may be obtained by calling 1-800-870-8039. There is no charge for written exchange requests. Fund Services will, however, charge a \$5 fee for each exchange transaction that is executed via the telephone.

AN EXCHANGE FROM THE FUND TO THE FIRST AMERICAN FUND IS TREATED THE SAME AS AN ORDINARY SALE AND PURCHASE FOR FEDERAL INCOME TAX PURPOSES AND YOU WILL REALIZE A CAPITAL GAIN OR LOSS. AN EXCHANGE IS NOT A TAX-FREE TRANSACTION.

PRICING OF SHARES

Shares of the Fund are sold on a continual basis at the net asset value per share next computed following receipt of an order in proper form by a dealer, the Distributor or Fund Services, the Fund's transfer agent.

The net asset value per share is determined as of the close of trading (generally 4:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time) on each day the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") is open for business. Purchase orders received or shares tendered for redemption on a day the NYSE is open for trading, prior to the close of trading on that day, will be valued as of the close of trading on that day. Applications for purchase of shares and requests for redemption of shares received after the close of trading on the NYSE will be valued as of the close of trading on the next day the NYSE is open. The Fund's net asset value may not be calculated on days during which the Fund receives no orders to purchase shares and no shares are tendered for redemption. Net asset value is calculated by taking the fair value of the Fund's total assets, including interest or dividends accrued, but not yet collected, less all liabilities, and dividing by the total number of shares outstanding. The result, rounded to the nearest cent, is the net asset value per share .

In determining net asset value, expenses are accrued and applied daily and securities and other assets for which market quotations are available are valued at market value. Common stocks and other equity-type securities are valued at the sales price at the close of regular trading on the national securities exchange (other than The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. ("Nasdaq")) on which such securities are primarily traded; however, securities traded on a national securities exchange for which there were no transactions on a given day, and securities not listed on a national securities exchange, are valued at the average of the most recent bid and asked prices. The Fund values securities traded on Nasdaq at the Nasdaq Official Closing Price. Fixed income securities are valued by a pricing service that utilizes electronic data processing techniques to determine values for normal institutional-sized trading units of fixed income securities; otherwise, actual sale or bid prices are used. Any securities or other assets for which market quotations are not readily available are valued at fair value as determined

in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The Board of Directors may approve the use of pricing services to assist the Fund in the determination of net asset value. Fixed income securities having remaining maturities of 60 days or less when purchased are generally valued by the amortized cost method. Under this method of valuation, a security is initially valued at its acquisition cost and, thereafter, amortization of any discount or premium is assumed each day, regardless of the impact of fluctuating interest rates on the market value of the security.

REDEMPTIONS IN KIND

The Fund has filed a notification under Rule 18f-1 of the 1940 Act, pursuant to which it has agreed to pay in cash all requests for redemption by any shareholder of record, limited in amount with respect to each shareholder during any 90-day period to the lesser amount of (i) \$250,000 or (ii) 1% of the Fund's net asset value, valued at the beginning of the election period. The Fund intends also to pay redemption proceeds in excess of such lesser amount in cash, but reserves the right to pay such excess amount in kind, if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the Fund to do so. If you receive an in kind distribution, you will likely incur a brokerage charge on the disposition of such securities through a securities dealer.

TAXATION OF THE FUND

The Fund intends to qualify annually as a "regulated investment company" under Subchapter M of the U.S. Interal Revenue Code of 1968, as amended, and, if so qualified, will not be liable for federal income taxes to the extent taxable income is distributed to shareholders on a timely basis. In the event the Fund fails to qualify as a "regulated investment company," it will be treated as a regular corporation for federal income tax purposes. Accordingly, the Fund would be subject to federal income taxes and any distributions that it makes would be taxable to shareholders and non-deductible by the Fund. This would increase the cost of investing in the Fund for shareholders and would make it more economical for shareholders to invest directly in securities held by the Fund instead of investing indirectly in such securities through the Fund.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Tait, Weller & Baker LLP, Two Liberty Place, 50 South 16th Street, Suite 2900, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19102, the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm, audited the Fund's reports and financial statements for the fiscal years ending September 30, 2015 through September 30, 2019.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Fund are incorporated herein by reference to the Fund's Annual Report dated September 30, 2019, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission:

- (a) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
- (b) Schedule of Investments as of September 30, 2019.
- (c) Statement of Assets and Liabilities as of September 30, 2019.
- (d) Statement of Operations for the year ended September 30, 2019.
- (e) Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the years ended September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018.
- (f) Financial Highlights for the years ended September 30, 2019, September 30, 2018, September 30, 2017, September 30, 2016 and September 30, 2015.
- (g) Notes to the Financial Statements.

APPENDIX

SHORT-TERM RATINGS

STANDARD & POOR'S SHORT-TERM DEBT CREDIT RATINGS

A Standard & Poor's issue credit rating is a current opinion of the creditworthiness of an obligor with respect to a specific financial obligation, a specific class of financial obligations, or a specific financial program (including ratings on medium-term note programs and commercial paper programs). It takes into consideration the creditworthiness of guarantors, insurers, or other forms of credit enhancement on the obligation and takes into account the currency in which the obligation is denominated. The opinion evaluates the obligor's capacity and willingness to meet its financial commitments as they come due, and may assess terms, such as collateral security and subordination, which could affect ultimate payment in the event of default. The issue credit rating is not a recommendation to purchase, sell, or hold a financial obligation, inasmuch as it does not comment as to market price or suitability for a particular investor.

Issue credit ratings are based on current information furnished by the obligors or obtained by Standard & Poor's from other sources it considers reliable. Standard & Poor's does not perform an audit in connection with any credit rating and may, on occasion, rely on unaudited financial information. Credit ratings may be changed, suspended, or withdrawn as a result of changes in, or unavailability of, such information, or based on other circumstances.

Issue credit ratings can be either long term or short term. Short-term ratings are generally assigned to those obligations considered short-term in the relevant market. In the U.S., for example, that means obligations with an original maturity of no more than 365 days – including commercial paper. Short-term ratings are also used to indicate the creditworthiness of an obligor with respect to put features on long-term obligations. The result is a dual rating, in which the short-term rating addresses the put feature, in addition to the usual long-term rating. Medium-term notes are assigned long-term ratings.

Short term credit ratings:

- A-1 A short-term obligation rated 'A-1' is rated in the highest category by Standard & Poor's. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is strong. Within this category, certain obligations are designated with a plus sign (+). This indicates that the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on these obligations is extremely strong.
- A-2 A short-term obligation rated 'A-2' is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and eco-nomic conditions than obligations in higher rating categories. However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is satisfactory.
- A-3 A short-term obligation rated 'A-3' exhibits adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- B A short-term obligation rated 'B' is regarded as having significant speculative characteristics. Ratings of 'B-1', 'B-2', and 'B-3' may be assigned to indicate finer distinctions within the 'B' category. The obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation; however, it faces major ongoing uncertainties which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- B-1 A short-term obligation rated 'B-1' is regarded as having significant speculative characteristics, but the obligor has a relatively stronger capacity to meet its financial commitments over the short-term compared to other speculative-grade obligors.
- B-2 A short-term obligation rated 'B-2' is regarded as having significant speculative characteristics, and the obligor has an average speculative-grade capacity to meet its financial commitments over the short-term compared to other speculative-grade obligors.

- B-3 A short-term obligation rated 'B-3' is regarded as having significant speculative characteristics, and the obligor has a relatively weaker capacity to meet its financial commitments over the short-term compared to other speculative-grade obligors.
- C A short-term obligation rated 'C' is currently vulnerable to nonpayment and is dependent upon favorable business, financial, and economic conditions for the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- D A short-term obligation rated 'D' is in payment default. The 'D' rating category is used when payments on an obligation are not made on the date due even if the applicable grace period has not expired, unless Standard & Poor's believes that such payments will be made during such grace period. The 'D' rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of a similar action if payments on an obligation are jeopardized.

See www.standardandpoors.com for further information. Information contained in such website is deemed not to be a part of the Funds' Prospectus or this Statement of Additional Information.

MOODY'S SHORT-TERM RATING SYSTEM

Moody's short-term ratings are opinions of the ability of issuers to honor short-term financial obligations. Ratings may be assigned to issuers, short-term programs or to individual short-term debt instruments. Such obligations generally have an original maturity not exceeding thirteen months, unless explicitly noted.

Moody's employs the following designations to indicate the relative repayment ability of rated issuers:

- P-1 Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated 'Prime-1' have a superior ability to repay short-term debt obligations.
- P-2 Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated 'Prime-2' have a strong ability to repay short-term debt obligations.
- P-3 Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated 'Prime-3' have an acceptable ability for repayment of short-term obligations.
- NP Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Not Prime do not fall within any of the Prime rating categories.

In addition, in certain countries the prime rating may be modified by the issuer's or guarantor's senior unsecured long-term debt rating. See www.moodys.com for further information. Information contained in such website is deemed not to be a part of the Funds' Prospectus or this Statement of Additional Information.

FITCH INTERNATIONAL SHORT-TERM CREDIT RATINGS

Fitch's credit ratings provide an opinion on the relative ability of an entity to meet financial commitments, such as interest, preferred dividends, repayment of principal, insurance claims or counterparty obligations. Credit ratings are used by investors as indications of the likelihood of receiving their money back in accordance with the terms on which they invested. Fitch's credit ratings cover the global spectrum of corporate, sovereign (including supranational and sub-national), financial, bank, insurance, municipal and other public finance entities and the securities or other obligations they issue, as well as structured finance securities backed by receivables or other financial assets.

International credit ratings assess the capacity to meet foreign currency or local currency commitments. Both "foreign currency" and "local currency" ratings are internationally comparable assessments. The local currency rating measures the likelihood of repayment in the currency of the jurisdiction in which the issuer is domiciled and hence does not take account of the possibility that it will not be possible to convert local currency into foreign currency or make transfers between sovereign jurisdictions.

The following ratings scale applies to foreign currency and local currency ratings. A Short-term rating has a time horizon of less than 13 months for most obligations, or up to three years for US public finance, in line with industry standards, to reflect unique risk characteristics of bond, tax, and revenue anticipation notes that are commonly issued with terms up to three years. Short-term ratings thus place greater emphasis on the liquidity necessary to meet financial commitments in a timely manner.

- F-1 **HIGHEST CREDIT QUALITY.** Indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of financial commitments; may have an added "+" to denote any exceptionally strong credit feature.
- F-2 **GOOD CREDIT QUALITY.** A good capacity for timely payment of financial commitments, but the margin of safety is not as great as in the case of the higher ratings.
- F-3 **FAIR CREDIT QUALITY.** The capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is adequate; however, near term adverse changes could result in a reduction to non-investment grade.
- B **SPECULATIVE.** Minimal capacity for timely payment of financial commitments, plus vulnerability to near term adverse changes in financial and economic conditions.
- C **HIGH DEFAULT RISK.** Default is a real possibility. Capacity for meeting financial commitments is solely reliant upon a sustained, favorable business and economic environment.
- D **DEFAULT.** Indicates a broad-based default event for an entity, or the default of a specific short-term obligation.

NOTES TO INTERNATIONAL LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM RATINGS:

The modifiers "+" or "-" may be appended to a rating to denote relative status within major rating categories. Such suffixes are not added to the 'AAA' Long-term rating category, to categories below 'CCC', or to Short-term ratings other than 'F1'. (The +/- modifiers are only used to denote issues within the CCC category, whereas issuers are only rated CCC without the use of modifiers.)

Rating Watch: Ratings are placed on Rating Watch to notify investors that there is a reasonable probability of a rating change and the likely direction of such change. These are designated as "Positive", indicating a potential upgrade, "Negative", for a potential downgrade, or "Evolving", if ratings may be raised, lowered or maintained. Rating Watch is typically resolved over a relatively short period.

Rating Outlook: An Outlook indicates the direction a rating is likely to move over a one to two-year period. Outlooks may be positive, stable or negative. A positive or negative Rating Outlook does not imply a rating change is inevitable. Similarly, ratings for which outlooks are 'stable' could be upgraded or downgraded before an outlook moves to positive or negative if circumstances warrant such an action. Occasionally, Fitch Ratings may be unable to identify the fundamental trend. In these cases, the Rating Outlook may be described as evolving.

Program ratings (such as the those assigned to MTN shelf registrations) relate only to standard issues made under the program concerned; it should not be assumed that these ratings apply to every issue made under the program.

Fitch's ratings on U.S. public finance debt securities measure credit quality relative to other U.S. public finance debt securities.

Interest Only ratings are assigned to interest strips. These ratings do not address the possibility that a security holder might fail to recover some or all of its initial investment due to voluntary or involuntary principal repayments.

Principal Only ratings address the likelihood that a security holder will receive their initial principal investment either before or by the scheduled maturity date.



Ratings also may be assigned to gauge the likelihood of an investor receiving a certain predetermined internal rate of return without regard to the precise timing of any cash flows.

'PIF' indicates that the tranche has reached maturity and has been "paid-in-full", regardless of whether it was amortized or called early. As the issue no longer exists, it is therefore no longer rated.

'NR' denotes that Fitch Ratings does not publicly rate the associated issue or issuer. 'WD' indicates that the rating has been withdrawn and is no longer maintained by Fitch.

See www.fitchratings.com for further information. Information contained in such website is deemed not to be a part of the Funds' Prospectus or this Statement of Additional Information.

LONG-TERM RATINGS

STANDARD & POOR'S LONG-TERM DEBT CREDIT RATINGS

A Standard & Poor's issue credit rating is a current opinion of the creditworthiness of an obligor with respect to a specific financial obligation, a specific class of financial obligations, or a specific financial program (including ratings on medium-term note programs and commercial paper programs). It takes into consideration the creditworthiness of guarantors, insurers, or other forms of credit enhancement on the obligation and takes into account the currency in which the obligation is denominated. The opinion evaluates the obligor's capacity and willingness to meet its financial commitments as they come due, and may assess terms, such as collateral security and subordination, which could affect ultimate payment in the event of default. The issue credit rating is not a recommendation to purchase, sell, or hold a financial obligation, inasmuch as it does not comment as to market price or suitability for a particular investor.

Issue credit ratings are based on current information furnished by the obligors or obtained by Standard & Poor's from other sources it considers reliable. Standard & Poor's does not perform an audit in connection with any credit rating and may, on occasion, rely on unaudited financial information. Credit ratings may be changed, suspended, or withdrawn as a result of changes in, or unavailability of, such information, or based on other circumstances.

Issue credit ratings can be either long term or short term. Short-term ratings are generally assigned to those obligations considered short-term in the relevant market. In the U.S., for example, that means obligations with an original maturity of no more than 365 days – including commercial paper. Short-term ratings are also used to indicate the creditworthiness of an obligor with respect to put features on long-term obligations. The result is a dual rating, in which the short-term rating addresses the put feature, in addition to the usual long-term rating. Medium-term notes are assigned long-term ratings.

Issue credit ratings are based, in varying degrees, on the following considerations: (1) likelihood of payment--capacity and willingness of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on an obligation in accordance with the terms of the obligation; (2) nature of and provisions of the obligation; and (3) protection afforded by, and relative position of, the obligation in the event of bankruptcy, reorganization or other arrangement under the laws of bankruptcy and other laws affecting creditors' rights.

Issue ratings are an assessment of default risk, but may incorporate an assessment of relative seniority or ultimate recovery in the event of default. Junior obligations are typically rated lower than senior obligations, to reflect the lower priority in bankruptcy, as noted above. (Such differentiation may apply when an entity has both senior and subordinated obligations, secured and unsecured obligations, or operating company and holding company obligations.)

- AAA An obligation rated 'AAA' has the highest rating assigned by Standard & Poor's. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is extremely strong.
- AA An obligation rated 'AA' differs from the highest rated obligations only to a small degree. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is very strong.

- A An obligation rated 'A' is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher rated categories. However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is still strong.
- BBB An obligation rated 'BBB' exhibits adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.

Obligations rated 'BB', 'B', 'CCC, 'CC', and 'C' are regarded as having significant speculative characteristics. 'BB' indicates the least degree of speculation and 'C' the highest. While such obligations will likely have some quality and protective characteristics, these may be outweighed by large uncertainties or major exposures to adverse conditions.

- BB An obligation rated 'BB' is less vulnerable to nonpayment than other speculative issues. However, it faces major ongoing uncertainties or exposure to adverse business, financial or economic conditions which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- B An obligation rated 'B' is more vulnerable to nonpayment than obligations rated 'BB', but the obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. Adverse business, financial or economic conditions will likely impair the obligor's capacity or willingness to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- CCC An obligation rated 'CCC' is currently vulnerable to nonpayment, and is dependent upon favorable business, financial and economic conditions for the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. In the event of adverse business, financial or economic conditions, the obligor is not likely to have the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- CC An obligation rated 'CC' is currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment.
- C A 'C' rating is assigned to obligations that are currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment, obligations that have payment arrearages allowed by the terms of the documents, or obligations of an issuer that is the subject of a bankruptcy petition or similar action which have not experienced a payment default. Among others, the 'C' rating may be assigned to subordinated debt, preferred stock or other obligations on which cash payments have been suspended in accordance with the instrument's terms or when preferred stock is the subject of a distressed exchange offer, whereby some or all of the issue is either repurchased for an amount of cash or replaced by other instruments having a total value that is less than par.
- D An obligation rated 'D' is in payment default. The 'D' rating category is used when payments on an obligation are not made on the date due even if the applicable grace period has not expired, unless Standard & Poor's believes that such payments will be made during such grace period. The 'D' rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of a similar action if payments on an obligation are jeopardized. An obligation's rating is lowered to 'D' upon completion of a distressed exchange offer, whereby some or all of the issue is either repurchased for an amount of cash or replaced by other instruments having a total value that is less than par

PLUS (+) OR MINUS (-): The ratings from 'AA' to 'CCC' may be modified by the addition of a plus or minus sign to show relative standing within the major rating categories.

NR This indicates that no rating has been requested, that there is insufficient information on which to base a rating, or that Standard & Poor's does not rate a particular obligation as a matter of policy.

See www.standardandpoors.com for further information. Information contained in such website is deemed not to be a part of the Funds' Prospectus or this Statement of Additional Information.

MOODY'S LONG-TERM RATINGS

Moody's long-term obligation ratings are opinions of the relative credit risk of fixed-income obligations with an original maturity of one year or more. They address the possibility that a financial obligation will not be honored as promised. Such ratings use Moody's Global Scale and reflect both the likelihood of default and any financial loss suffered in the event of default.

- AAA Obligations rated Aaa are judged to be of the highest quality, with minimal credit risk.
- AA Obligations rated Aa are judged to be of high quality and are subject to very low credit risk.
- A Obligations rated A are considered upper-medium grade and are subject to low credit risk.
- BAA Obligations rated Baa are subject to moderate credit risk. They are considered medium-grade and as such may possess certain speculative characteristics.
- BA Obligations rated Ba are judged to have speculative elements and are subject to substantial credit risk.
- B Obligations rated B are considered speculative and are subject to high credit risk.
- CAA Obligations rated Caa are judged to be of poor standing and are subject to very high credit risk.
- CA Obligations rated Ca are highly speculative and are likely in, or very near, default, with some prospect of recovery of principal and interest.
- C Obligations rated C are the lowest rated class of bonds and are typically in default, with little prospect for recovery of principal or interest.

Moody's assigns long-term ratings to individual debt securities issued from medium-term note (MTN) programs, in addition to indicating ratings to MTN programs themselves. These long-term ratings are expressed on Moody's general long-term scale. Notes issued under MTN programs with such indicated ratings are rated at issuance at the rating applicable to all pari passu notes issued under the same program, at the program's relevant indicated rating, provided such notes do not exhibit any of the characteristics listed below:

- 1. Notes containing features that link interest or principal to the credit performance of any third party or parties (i.e., creditlinked notes);
- 2. Notes allowing for negative coupons, or negative principal;
- 3. Notes containing any provision that could obligate the investor to make any additional payments;
- 4. Notes containing provisions that subordinate the claim.
- 5. For notes with any of these characteristics, the rating of the individual note may differ from the indicated rating of the program.

For credit-linked securities, Moody's policy is to "look through" to the credit risk of the underlying obligor. Moody's policy with respect to non-credit linked obligations is to rate the issuer's ability to meet the contract as stated, regardless of potential losses to investors as a result of non-credit developments. In other words, as long as the obligation has debt standing in the event of bankruptcy, we will assign the appropriate debt class level rating to the instrument.

Market participants must determine whether any particular note is rated, and if so, at what rating level. Moody's encourages market participants to contact Moody's Ratings Desks or visit www.moodys.com directly if they have questions regarding ratings for specific notes issued under a medium-term note program. Information contained in such website is deemed not to be a part of the Funds' Prospectus or this Statement of Additional Information.

FITCH INTERNATIONAL LONG-TERM CREDIT RATINGS

Fitch's credit ratings provide an opinion on the relative ability of an entity to meet financial commitments, such as interest, preferred dividends, repayment of principal, insurance claims or counterparty obligations. Credit ratings are used by investors as indications of the likelihood of receiving their money back in accordance with the terms on which they invested. Fitch's credit ratings cover the global spectrum of corporate, sovereign (including supranational and sub-national), financial, bank, insurance, municipal and other public finance entities and the securities or other obligations they issue, as well as structured finance securities backed by receivables or other financial assets.

International credit ratings assess the capacity to meet foreign currency or local currency commitments. Both "foreign currency" and "local currency" ratings are internationally comparable assessments. The local currency rating measures the likelihood of repayment in the currency of the jurisdiction in which the issuer is domiciled and hence does not take account of the possibility that it will not be possible to convert local currency into foreign currency or make transfers between sovereign jurisdictions.

The following ratings scale applies to foreign currency and local currency ratings.

INVESTMENT GRADE

- AAA **HIGHEST CREDIT QUALITY.** 'AAA' ratings denote the lowest expectation of default risk. They are assigned only in case of exceptionally strong capacity for payment of financial commitments. This capacity is highly unlikely to be adversely affected by foreseeable events.
- AA **VERY HIGH CREDIT QUALITY.** 'AA' ratings denote expectations of very low default risk. They indicate very strong capacity for payment of financial commitments. This capacity is not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.
- A **HIGH CREDIT QUALITY.** 'A' ratings denote expectations of low default risk. The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered strong. This capacity may, nevertheless, be more vulnerable to changes in circumstances or in economic conditions than is the case for higher ratings.
- BBB **GOOD CREDIT QUALITY.** 'BBB' ratings indicate that there are currently expectations of low default risk. The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered adequate but adverse changes in circumstances and economic conditions are more likely to impair this capacity. This is the lowest investment grade category.

SPECULATIVE GRADE

- BB **SPECULATIVE.** 'BB' ratings indicate that there is an elevated vulnerability to default risk developing, particularly as the result of adverse economic change over time; however, business or financial alternatives may be available to allow financial commitments to be met. Securities rated in this category are not investment grade.
- B **HIGHLY SPECULATIVE.** For issuers and performing obligations, 'B' ratings indicate that material default risk is present, but a limited margin of safety remains. Financial commitments are currently being met; however, capacity for continued payment is contingent upon a sustained, favorable business and economic environment. For individual obligations, may indicate distressed or defaulted obligations with outstanding potential for recovery. Such obligations would possess a Recovery Rating of 'RR1' (outstanding).



- CCC For issuers and performing obligations, default is a real possibility. Capacity for meeting financial commitments is solely reliant upon sustained, favorable business or economic conditions. For individual obligations, may indicate distressed or defaulted obligations with potential for average to superior levels of recovery. Differences in credit quality may be denoted by plus/minus distinctions. Such obligations typically would possess a Recovery Rating of 'RR2' (superior).
- CC For issuers and performing obligations, default of some kind appears probable. For individual obligations, may indicate distressed or defaulted obligations with a Recovery Rating of 'RR3' (good).
- C For issuers and performing obligations, default is imminent. For individual obligations, may indicate distressed or defaulted obligations with potential for below-average to poor recoveries. Such obligations would possess a Recovery Rating of 'RR4' (average), 'RR5' (below average) or 'RR6' (poor).
- RD Indicates an issuer that in Fitch Ratings' opinion has experienced an uncured payment default on a bond, loan or other material financial obligation but which has not entered into bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other formal winding-up procedure, and which has not otherwise ceased business. This would include: the selective payment default on a specific class or currency of debt; the uncured expiry of any applicable grace period, cure period or default forbearance period following a payment default on a bank loan, capital markets security or other material financial obligations; the extension of multiple waivers or forbearance periods upon a payment default on one or more material financial obligations, either in series or in parallel; or execution of a coercive debt exchange on one or more material financial obligations.
- D Indicates an issuer that in Fitch Ratings' opinion has entered into bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other winding-up or cessation of business.

Default ratings are not assigned prospectively; within this context, non-payment on an instrument that contains a deferral feature or grace period will not be considered a default until after the expiration of the deferral or grace period, unless a default is otherwise driven by bankruptcy or other similar circumstance, or by a coercive debt exchange.

Issuers will be rated 'D' upon a default. Defaulted and distressed obligations typically are rated along the continuum of 'C' to 'B' ratings categories, depending upon their recovery prospects and other relevant characteristics. Additionally, in structured finance transactions, where analysis indicates that an instrument is irrevocably impaired such that it is not expected to meet pay interest and/or principal in full in accordance with the terms of the obligation's documentation during the life of the transaction, but where no payment default in accordance with the terms of the documentation is imminent, the obligation will typically be rated in the 'C' category.

Default is determined by reference to the terms of the obligations' documentation. Fitch will assign default ratings where it has reasonably determined that payment has not been made on a material obligation in accordance with the requirements of the obligation's documentation, or where it believes that default ratings consistent with Fitch's published definition of default are the most appropriate ratings to assign.

See www.fitchratings.com for further information. Information contained in such website is deemed not to be a part of the Fund's Prospectus or this Statement of Additional Information.

